
1

Swyddog Cyswllt:
Maureen Potter 01352 702322
maureen.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Cyng Dave Mackie (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: Janet Axworthy, Marion Bateman, Sean Bibby, Geoff Collett, 
Ian Dunbar, Mared Eastwood, Dennis Hutchinson, Tudor Jones, Brian Lloyd, 
Mike Reece, Paul Shotton, Ralph Small, Andy Williams and David Wisinger

Dydd Mawrth, 22 Ionawr 2019

Annwyl Gynghorydd,

Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Newid Sefydliadol a 
fydd yn cael ei gynnal am 10.00 am Dydd Llun, 28ain Ionawr, 2019 yn Ystafell 
Bwyllgor Delyn, Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug CH7 6NA i ystyried yr eitemau canlynol

R H A G L E N

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU 
Pwrpas: I dderbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD (GAN GYNNWYS DATGANIADAU CHWIPIO) 
Pwrpas: I dderbyn unrhyw ddatganiad o gysylltiad a chynghori’r Aelodau 

yn unol a hynny.

3 COFNODION (Tudalennau 3 - 8)
Pwrpas: I gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfod ar 17 Rhagfyr  

2018.

4 DIWEDDARIAD AR Y MODEL DARPARIAETH AMGEN - DIWRNOD 
ANABLEDDAU DYSGU GOFAL CYMDEITHASOL A’R GWASANAETH 
CYFLEOEDD GWAITH (Tudalennau 9 - 20)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol) - Aelod y Cabinet 
dros y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol

Pwrpas: Rhoi diweddariad ar gynnydd a wnaed gyda Model Darpariaeth 
Amgen Diwrnod Anableddau Dysgu Gofal Cymdeithasol a’r 
Gwasanaeth Cyfleoedd Gwaith, gan gynnwys trosglwyddiad y 
swydd gwasanaeth i Hft Ltd.

Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus



2

5 RHAGLEN GWAITH I’R DYFODOL (Tudalennau 21 - 26)
Adroddiad Hwylusydd Trosolwg a Chraffu.

Pwrpas: Ystyried y flaenraglen waith Pwyllgor Craffu & Trosolwg newid 
sefydliadol.

Yn gywir

Robert Robins
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd



ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 DECEMBER 2018

Minutes of the meeting of the Organisational Change Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee of Flintshire County Council held in the Delyn Committee Room, 
County Hall, Mold on Monday, 17 December 2018

PRESENT: Councillor Dave Mackie (Chairman)
Councillors: Janet Axworthy, Sean Bibby, Geoff Collett, Mared Eastwood, 
Dennis Hutchinson, Tudor Jones, Mike Reece, Ralph Small, Andy Williams, 
and David Wisinger

SUBSTITUTIONS:  Councillors Dave Hughes (for Ian Dunbar) and Patrick 
Heesom (for Brian Lloyd)

APOLOGIES:  Councillor Billy Mullin, Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Management and Assets.  Councillors Marion Bateman and Paul Shotton

CONTRIBUTORS:  Councillor Ian Roberts, Cabinet Member for Education,  
Chief Officer (Governance), Chief Officer (Housing and Assets), Chief Officer 
(Social Services)

IN ATTENDANCE: Overview and Scrutiny Facilitator and Democratic Services 
Officer

28. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

29. MINUTES

(i) The minutes of the meeting held on 17 September 2018 were submitted.

(ii) The minutes of the meeting held on 2 November 2018 were submitted.

Accuracy

Councillor Dennis Hutchinson said he had submitted his apologies to the 
meeting and asked that the minutes be amended to record this.

RESOLVED:

That subject to the above amendment the minutes be approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman.

Tudalen 3

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 3



30. DIGITAL CUSTOMER OVERVIEW

The Chief Officer (Governance) introduced the report to provide an 
update on progress and to give assurance to the Committee on the design 
principles underpinning the creation of a single contact centre as part of 
delivering the digital customer theme of the digital strategy.

The Chief Officer advised that in March 2018, Cabinet had agreed to the 
creation of a single Contact Centre starting initially with the joining of the 
Contact Centres serving Streetscene and Housing.  He outlined the key 
objectives of the project which were to build resilience within the combined team 
to deal effectively with peak call/incident times, staff absence and vacancies, 
improve Welsh language provision, and provide customers with access to 
multiple services via their Customer Account.

The Chief Officer explained that as part of improving digital services the 
Council would upgrade the online capability of the housing software to enable 
tenants to link directly to their housing account details from the Flintshire 
Customer Account page on the Council’s website, and view rent account 
details, repairs, applications, account information, and make payments.

The first phase of the project for a combined contact centre was being 
implemented with action concentrating on the amalgamation of roles in Housing 
and Streetscene into a common job description for contact centre agents and 
the appointment of a manager overseeing the single service; review and 
improvement of information and content on the Flintshire website for customers 
to find information and self-serve; and the implementation of the online Housing 
capability.  It was planned that Phase 1 would be operational from mid March 
2019, however, a review of the technical and staff position would be undertaken 
in advance to ensure services would be delivered with no degradation of quality 
as a result.

The Chief Officer reported that discussions were also taking place with 
other services to identify and agree the scope of services which could be 
transitioned into the combined contact centre at a later date.  The intention was 
to aim for a fully combined contact centre operating from Ty Dewi Sant, Ewloe, 
from April 2020.  The Chief Officer said a further report on the Digital Strategy 
would be submitted to the Committee to provide an update on progress early 
next year.   He also referred to the Digital Strategy workshop which would be 
held for all Members on 16 January 2019.

Councillor Geoff Collett asked if the digital strategy would be delivered 
on time.  He also referred to the invest to save budget allocation of £550k and 
asked if this was a one-off or annual allocation.  In response the Chief Officer 
explained that the programme was currently on target for mid-March next year, 
however, an assessment of the ‘readiness’ of services to go live would be 
undertaken in advance to ensure no disruption to services would occur.  
Referring to the budget allocation of £550k the Chief Officer advised that this 
was not an annual cost and the funding would be used to fund three key new 
posts for the delivery of the Digital Customer project, software, and licences.   

Tudalen 4



The Chief Officer explained that costs were being tracked and monitored and 
the current position regarding staffing was a cost neutral or small saving to be 
achieved.

Councillor Tudor Jones sought assurance that a telephone service 
would continue to be provided in the future and spoke of the needs of elderly 
people who may not have access to on-line services at home.  Councillor Jones 
also asked if a call-back option would be provided to avoid high call charges for 
residents on a low income and if data could be provided on the number of repeat 
calls made on a specific matter.  The Chief Officer confirmed that there was no 
intention to remove the telephone service and explained that the aim of the 
Strategy was to improve the number of services and range of functionality over 
the web to provide greater access to services for residents at a time and 
location that was convenient to them.  He continued that staff in the Contact 
Centre would engage with customers and support them to self-serve through 
information, advice and guidance.  The Chief Officer said there would also be 
wide spread promotion of the facilities available to residents on the Council’s 
website to reduce the volume of calls made.

In response to a comment from Councillor David Wisinger, the Chief 
Officer explained that calls would be routed to the most appropriate service and 
expertise support would be available to address more complex enquiries and 
assist elderly or vulnerable people.  He also explained that the number of calls 
per day were recorded which included the number of calls abandoned.

Councillor Patrick Heesom expressed concerns that some residents 
living in deprived areas may not have access to web based services at home 
or the IT skills or financial means to afford transport to contact centres out of 
their community.  He emphasised the need for face to face conversation and 
said remote contact by telephone or on-line services was not suitable or user 
friendly in disadvantaged communities.  He asked that consideration be given 
to increasing the number of Connect Centres specifically in deprived areas.  
The Chief Officer responded to the comments and reiterated that the Digital 
Strategy would enhance the existing services provided to residents and 
increase access to services beyond normal office hours at a time and location 
that was convenient to the individual.  He explained that the Authority had 5 
Connect Centres throughout the County and staff at the Centres would be able 
to provide personal assistance to residents and work in conjunction with the 
Contact Centre to resolve enquiries and support people to self-serve.

Councillor Janet Axworthy expressed her appreciation to Chief Officers 
and their teams for the hard work and planning which had been undertaken to 
combine the Streetscene and Housing teams into a single combined team and 
relocating to Ty Dewi Sant, Ewloe.

Councillor Tudor Jones commented on the need to promote the Digital 
Strategy to inform the general public of the services available on the Council’s 
website and how they could access them, citing information in public community 
centres and libraries as an example.  The Chief Officer commented that the use 
of digital services would assist people with physical disabilities by increasing 

Tudalen 5



accessibility.  He acknowledged the points made by Councillor Jones and said 
there was also a need to promote awareness with other local authorities, citing 
Denbighshire and Wrexham as examples, of the digital services available in 
Flintshire for residents who lived close to Flintshire’s borders.

Councillor Patrick Heesom commented that the system should be based 
around the needs of people first and foremost not service based and said 
provision should be made for residents to have direct contact in their local area.  
In response to the concerns raised by Councillor Heesom the Chief Officer 
explained that there was no additional funding available to increase the number 
of Connect Centres.  He reiterated that a telephone service would continue to 
be provided with the additional facility for people to self-serve via the Council’s 
web service.  Appointments could be made to visit Ty Dewi Sant, Ewloe, and 
people were also able to receive personal support at a Connect Centre.

Councillor David Wisinger asked what backup services were available 
for ICT systems at Ty Dewi Sant.  The Chief Officer explained that contingency 
support was provided by Information and Business Services at County Hall, 
which was the same as the support provided to the Authority’s sites in other 
areas.

Councillor Tudor Jones asked if measures were in place to address 
abusive calls or face to face enquiries.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee notes the design principles underpinning the creation of a
single Contact Centre and endorses the progress made towards delivering the
Digital Customer theme of the Digital Strategy.

31. COUNCIL PLAN 2018/19 MID-YEAR MONITORING REPORT

The Chief Officer (Housing and Assets) introduced the report to present 
the monitoring of progress at the mid-year point of 2018/19 for the Council Plan 
priority ‘Connected Council’ relevant to the Committee.  He advised that the 
mid-year report showed that 88% of activities were making good progress with 
81% likely to achieve their planned outcomes.  79% of performance indicators 
had met or exceeded their targets.  Risks were being managed with a minority 
of 18% being assessed as major.

Councillor Patrick Heesom queried the performance indicator 
concerning limitations on public funding to subsidise alternative models 
(ADMs).  The Chief Officer (Social Services) referred to the positive feedback 
from review meetings on the first year trading figures for ADMs, however, he 
said the challenges to public funding remained and this was the reason for the 
current risk rating.  The Chief Officer (Housing and Assets) advised that the 
business plans for ADMs were reviewed regularly.

Councillor Patrick Heesom asked that a meeting be arranged to discuss 
the funding available for the transfer of assets within the Growth Bid.

Tudalen 6



RESOLVED:

That the Committee considered the mid-year Council Plan 2018/19 Monitoring 
Report to monitor under performance and raised a number of issues with 
Officers.

32. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator presented the current Forward Work 
Programme for consideration.  She drew attention to the items scheduled for 
the next meeting of the Committee to be held on 28 January 2019, and referred 
to the item on Connah’s Quay Swimming Pool – Cambrian Aquatics Mid-Year 
Progress Report 2018/19.  The Facilitator explained that the Board members 
of Cambrian Aquatics had difficulty attending the meeting of the Committee at 
County Hall, Mold, on 28 January, and it was suggested that the time and the 
venue of the meeting be reconsidered to enable them to attend.  The Chair 
proposed that Members considered holding a meeting in the evening at 
Cambrian Aquatics, Connah’s Quay, to facilitate the attendance of the Board 
members.  When put to the vote this was not carried.  It was agreed that the 
Chief Officer would report back to Cambrian Aquatics on the matter of 
attendance at the meeting scheduled for 28 January.

Members were advised that a further item to provide an update on the 
Digital Strategy would be included on the Forward Work Programme.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the Forward Work Programme as submitted be approved; and

(b) That the Facilitator in consultation with the Chair of the Committee be 
authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings 
should this be necessary.

33. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the press or the public in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 11.35 pm)

……………………
Chairman

Tudalen 7



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Monday, 28th January 2019

Report Subject Alternative Delivery Model Update (Social Care - 
Learning Disability  Day Care and Work Opportunities)

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Social Services

Report Author Chief Officer (Social Services)

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report provides an update on the Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for 
Learning Disability Day Care and Work Opportunities. This follows the report 
received by the Committee in January 2018.

The project aims to modernise and transform day and work services for people 
with learning disabilities and is part of the wider ADM Programme, which has 
delivered similar projects for leisure and library services, and facilities 
management.

Following a light touch procurement process, involving a range of stakeholders 
including people supported in services, Cabinet agreed to award the contract to 
Hft, a national charity and specialist Learning Disability service provider.  A 
contract was signed and sealed on 30th November 2017, appointing Hft to run the 
service from 1st February 2018 for an initial 5 years. Existing Flintshire County 
Council staff, fifty eight individuals, transferred to Hft under the regulations of 
TUPE on the service start date.

Hft have been managing and delivering the service for eleven months. This report 
provides an update on the progress of this partnership, including an update on the 
construction of a new Day Centre in Queensferry that will help to transform and 
modernise services for people in Flintshire. 

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the Committee notes the progress made through the service 
partnership with Hft following successful transition in February 2018.

Tudalen 9

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE PROGRESS TO DATE FOR SOCIAL SERVICES 
LEARNING DISABILITY ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY MODEL 
PARTNERSHIP WITH HFT.

1.01 The Learning Disability Day Opportunities service provides meaningful 
daytime activities, in day centre and work environments, for more than 250 
people with learning disabilities.  This important and valued service also 
delivers respite for people that use services, and for their families and 
carers.  The service supports people to learn new skills, develop 
independence and to make social connections and friendships.

This ADM project has facilitated the development of a commissioned 
service to help build a sustainable model fit for the future thus protecting 
services and jobs. The appointed provider, Hft, have a proven track record 
of service delivery and are injecting new skills, expertise and experience 
into the service and driving a positive culture change. In addition, new fund 
raising initiatives and cost efficiency opportunities are being opened up. 
The contract incorporates a requirement for the provider to deliver 
Community Benefits as set out in the tender.  

This ADM project and commissioned service is further supported by the 
construction of a new community facility, named ‘Hwb Cyfle’ (Opportunity 
Hub), to replace the existing day service centre at Glanrafon, Queensferry.  
Hwb Cyfle is due to open in June 2019 and will provide a modern, efficient 
and accessible building to optimise service delivery and skills 
development.  The building will also increase community integration and 
engagement, and can drive additional income streams.

1.02 Hft are a national charity organisation, established in 1962, with social 
aims at the heart of their company strategy. The organisation supports 
over 2,800 individuals with learning disabilities across England and Wales. 
They work in partnership with the people they support, their families and 
carers and health professionals to develop effective services that help 
people live the life they choose. 

Hft use Person-Centred Active Support aligned to their Fusion Model to 
engage people with learning disabilities in meaningful activities and 
relationships. Supporting people with essential life skills including 
communication, decision making, personal care, health and wellbeing 
home and tenancy, accessing the community, employment, college and 
day services, making and maintaining friendships, cultural aspects of life, 
managing money and paperwork.

Hft have used their significant experience to make a positive difference to 
the quality of service delivery in Flintshire over the last 10 months.  This 
has been supplemented with expertise and support from other Hft service 
teams, particularly from the team in Bradford, West Yorkshire. 
As a national charitable organisation Hft have been able to bring in 
additional fundraising income, through a number of events, activities and 
partnerships.

Tudalen 10



1.03 Governance and contract monitoring is managed through the Partnership 
Board, which meets on a quarterly basis. The Board reviews service 
delivery progress against the Service Specification, monitors financial 
performance against service budget and manages key risks.  The Board 
also considers any service development proposals and business plans. 

The Partnership Board is independently chaired by Flintshire Local 
Voluntary Council (FLVC), and is attended by Trade Union partners. The 
board includes representation from the Council, including Cabinet 
Member, Chief Officer, Service Leads, Commissioning, HR and Finance 
partners, plus Senior Directors, Managers, Finance and HR partners from 
Hft.

The Board receives reports from operational and finance sub-groups which 
support partnership working, develop initiatives and manage operational 
issues outside of the board arrangements.  Hft are working with the 
Council in a spirit of openness and transparency using open-book 
accounting and full disclosure. 

The Partnership Board will undertake an annual review of the service 
contract at the end of the financial year in March 2019, and annually 
thereafter.  This review will assess: 

 performance of the Services against the performance indicators and 
outcomes defined in the Service Specification, including community 
benefits;

 plans to address any areas for service improvement;
 a review of the financial position and plans for further efficiency or 

new developments as appropriate; 
 feedback from staff, service users, family members and carers and 

any other applicable stakeholders, ensuring continued engagement 
and co-production;

 plans to respond to any changes in policy or Law applicable to the 
Services.

Safeguarding of individuals in the service is closely monitored through 
regular contact with the service by social workers and reviewing offices 
and regular reporting of incidents through the operational subgroup and 
partnership board. 

There is a proposal following the first 12 months of the contract that the 
partnership board moves to a business as usual process which will not 
require an independent Chair. As such Ann Woods from FLVC will step 
down, following full involvement in the procurement process, contract 
transition and first year of running.  The Chair role will then alternate 
between the Council and Hft. 

1.04 New Adult Day Centre

The new Adult Day Centre to be named Hwb Cyfle is taking shape. There 
is a fully built structure in place and work has now started on the internal 
layout.  This new £4 million Day and Work Opportunities Centre represents 
a significant capital investment by the Council and is a much needed 
modern and purpose built replacement for the existing Glanrafon Day 

Tudalen 11



Centre.  It will also provide an opportunity and activity hub for the wider 
service and community across the county.  

Hwb Cyfle is a single-storey modern design with bespoke facilities 
including vibrant and functional activity spaces, workshop space, a café, 
sensory room, accessible changing facilities and a sensory garden. The 
building work will complete in mid-June 2019, and preparations are in 
place to carefully plan the move from Glanrafon. The staff and people 
supported are very excited about this. The construction partner Kier have 
been very supportive to Hft, sponsoring the Christmas fair, arranging for 26 
Coleg Cambria apprentices to undertake weekly maintenance and repair 
tasks at Glanrafon, and providing tradesmen to teach construction related 
skills to people supported in the service.

1.05 Service Model Development

Following the service transfer, Hft prioritised continuity of service and for 
safeguarding people supported.  In alignment with their Fusion Model of 
support, Hft have continually reviewed the service delivery model across 
the whole service. Service development and continuous improvement are 
at the heart of future plans for Hft.  They aim to continuously improve 
services for people supported to meet outcomes.  They also strive to 
provide an enjoyable and rewarding work environment for staff, and to 
develop partnerships with service delivery partners and the wider 
community. 

A general review of traditional service model at Glanrafon day centre has 
led to some key changes in how people are supported, with a more agile 
and active daily schedule in which people move to different rooms to 
participate in engaging activities.  Changes to lunchtime provision have 
facilitated this activity driven approach and have greatly improved social 
interaction, helping to develop friendships among people supported.  
These changes have been very popular with the people supported as they 
have more choice and flexibility on how they choose to spend their day.  

As anticipated, Flintshire is benefitting from the wider organisational 
expertise in Hft. In July Hft held an away day with the Job Coach Team, 
jointly attended with some colleagues from Hft Bradford.  This was a very 
positive and productive day for knowledge sharing and best practice 
review.  The Flintshire Job Coach team have now set their strategy with a 
focus on finding volunteer or paid roles for people supported.  This is a 
more outcome based and progressive model for the service. A 
volunteering pathway will be developed in partnership with third sector 
organisations or those with a volunteering policy.  Hft have introduced a 
volunteering strategy to support this, working closely with FLVC.   

Hft are reviewing all existing work placements supported by the Job Coach 
team. The Job Coaches are exploring options with employers where there 
are placements that have been unpaid and individuals are fulfilling job 
descriptions.  Hft have had some success with this as now have eleven 
people in paid employment with a further five placements being looked 
into.  This review has also led to the recruitment of a volunteer receptionist 
at Glanrafon, which could become a paid role in the future.  Hft adapted 

Tudalen 12



the reception area for this person to access in his wheel chair.  In addition 
a person has completed a trial role as a lunch time assistant in the service, 
now taking up a paid role in this capacity.

Two people previously supported in the work opportunities’ cafes are now 
in volunteer roles in the Deeside Hospital café.  Support is provided to 
them, but is now able to fade as their skills and confidence increase.  
Hft have been successful in recruiting three volunteers to man the 
reception at Glanrafon, and a qualified chainsaw operator at Tri Ffordd to 
reduce operational costs.  They are also recruiting for volunteer activity 
tutors to support the long term goals of a diverse activity programme.

1.06 Workforce Development

For the first six months of the service contract, workforce development was 
focussed the introduction of Hft induction and mandatory training. This was 
supplemented with Hft expertise and supported by the regional Training 
Manager who was based in Flintshire for a substantial period of time to 
help embed Hft best practices and cultures. Hft are currently developing a 
strategic training plan with a focus on developing support staff to take a 
more outcome focussed approach.  The team are now producing Person 
Centred Plans (PCP’s) to enable individuals to express and achieve what 
matters most to them.

Recent referrals received have been for younger people with complex 
needs including autism. This has had a positive effect on the team 
currently as they have had to think differently about the type of support 
offered and how they are supporting people.   

In addition to mandatory service training, Hft have introduced a number of 
value added development opportunities for staff.  This skills development 
will enable the service to provide more diverse and engaging activities.  
These skills and activities include: Makaton training with the focus of a 
creating a Makaton Choir, Boccia Training, New Age Curling, Jewellery 
Making, Crane Training, Specialist IT training and Introduction to 
management.

1.07 Partnership Working

Hft are developing a number of beneficial partnerships across the county.  
These partnerships facilitate new activities for people supported, and have 
facilitated fundraising activities. The new partnerships and relationships 
include the following:
Aura at Deeside Leisure Centre provides the bike-ability scheme which is 
very popular, gets people outdoors and provides regular exercise.  
Disability Sport Wales have also provided fundraising support for sports 
and recreation.

A popular activity introduced to the service has been the visits from the 
Emerge music group. People supported are able to use music as a way of 
expressing themselves. One individual shown little interest in the past now 
will sing and dance in the sessions and plays the drum.  

At Glanrafon, Hft have linked with the shop ‘Lush’ to provide products for 
Tudalen 13



sensory sessions.  This has been a huge success and there are plans to 
repeat and extend the activity to other service locations. 

Volunteer placements have been obtained for people supported through 
links with Online Watch Link (OWL) and Deeside Hospital. 

Coleg Cambria are supporting staff and people supported to gain 
qualifications in catering skills.  Digital Partnerships Wales are also 
providing IT training for people supported and staff members.  

Hft have continued to work closely with colleagues in Betsi Cadwaladr 
University Health Board (BCUHB).  A Community Nurse visits each site on 
a regular basis, attending on different days of the week, holding drop in 
sessions where people can talk to her about anything, and continuing to 
use the Glanrafon site for assessments and weighing clinics.

As part of a partnership with North East Wales Carers Information Service 
(NEWCIS), Castle Connections are processing charitable donations they 
have for their shops including clothes and bric-a-brac.  They are also 
looking at training the people they support in PAT testing to further 
enhance this service.

Hft have linked in with the FLVC for volunteering opportunities and are 
hoping to build on these links, and develop wider network business links 
across the county.

Hft have also built links with the Department for Work & Pensions who 
have provided free training for the Job Coach team on access to work 
funding to support work placement opportunities.

1.08 Fundraising

As a registered charity Hft is able to raise funds to support the frontline 
work undertaken. With strong support from the Hft national fundraising 
team, they have held several fundraising events and have been successful 
in some bid and grant applications.   

Hft have a volunteer fundraiser who has been supporting the regional 
fundraisers by collecting donations for events and collection boxes in the 
community. They are looking to expand this to build a bigger fundraising 
committee that can support events throughout the year

Hft have generated more than £31,000 through fundraising activities.  This 
has enabled a number of service improvements, investments in equipment 
and technology to add value to people’s lives, and funding of new activities 
across the service.
Some key fundraising successes include:

 £1600 raised at a Christmas Fayre in December.
 £1200 granted from Disability Sports Wales to purchase sports 

equipment and staff sports training.
 £5000 from Hft funds which was used to purchase personalised 

technology.
Tudalen 14



 £3000 granted from Hft charitable fund for new uniforms at the cafes.
 £2180 from an Accumulator Challenge  -  Each location using £10 to 

arrange fundraising events and activities such as  raffles, sweet 
sales, coffee mornings, bingo, auction and a bake off. A great team 
working exercise. 

 A charity golf day in September raised £16,000 which will fund the 
cost of the Project Search licence.

1.09 Future Business Plans

As the first year of the service contract nears conclusion, Hft are assessing 
the opportunities to develop the service over the next 3 to 5 years.  The 
development of plans have been led by the Cranfield Trust Business 
School who have provided a business planning consultant at no cost. This 
will be particularly helpful to the Work Opportunities businesses to set a 
future direction that delivers outcomes for people supported, and provides 
a sustainable model of delivery. 

At Tri-Ffordd, this may include plans to develop the physical site to offer 
more diverse activities.  For Estuary Crafts and the Flint shop, a potential 
partnership with NEWCIS may expand activities to include furniture up-
cycling. The cafés are continuing to have success providing catering for 
events and training. Hft are exploring how they can extend and promote 
this part of the service. For example, a potential mobile catering van 
opportunity.  They are also working with Coleg Cambria to explore training 
and qualification opportunities. 

Castle Connections in Flint will look to continue to transform the service 
from a factory setting to more of a supported employment placement. 
The main focus for the next year with Glanrafon is the transition over to the 
new day provision in Hwb Cyfle. This will allow the service to change the 
way in which it supports people and the focus of why people attend. Hft will 
develop a prospectus of activity based on people’s needs and outcomes.  
Hft are working alongside Coleg Cambria and Adult Learning Wales to 
provide tutors and accredited courses for the people attending the service. 
They hope to complement this with volunteer tutors with expertise in 
different areas.  

Over the next year Hft will explore having some specialised groups (e.g. 
Autism) of support which will allow them to better able meet individual’s 
needs. It will also make the service more specialised and better equipped 
to support people with more complex needs. 

Longer term, Hft will assess the feasibility of providing extended opening 
hours for the service, such as later in to the evening or at the weekend 
dependent on what individuals require. This would allow the service to 
become more flexible around individuals and their lifestyles.

Tudalen 15



1.10 Project Search

Project Search is a flagship programme that Hft have been delivering 
successfully across the UK for a number of years.  Project Search is a 12 
month internship programme for young adults with disabilities. The project 
works closely with a host employer to provide at least three separate 
rotations of work experience for interns to try different roles in the 
organisation and learn and develop skills needed to enter paid or volunteer 
work roles.  In Flintshire, Hft will launch Project Search in September 2019.  
The project will use the centre of Flint as the base with Pennaf housing 
association taking the lead host role.  This will be supported by the 
Council, BCUHB and Aura.  Coleg Cambria are also involved to provide 
classroom based activities and tutors for the programme.  A project 
planning event is scheduled for the end of January.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 Financial Progress Against Budget

Efficiencies detailed in the report in January 2018 and reflected in the 
contract are on track to being achieved. This is monitored through social 
services programme board. 

2.02 Human Resource Implications

Fifty eight Flintshire County Council staff transferred to HFT under TUPE 
regulations. The transferring staff had the option to remain as members of 
the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), on a closed scheme 
basis.  

The transferred staff remain aligned with Local Authority Annual Pay 
Review processes for the duration of the contract, and they received the 
appropriate pay award in 2018.

A small number of transferred staff, around five, have since left the 
organisation including some retirements.  Hft have also installed 
management and administration roles into the workforce and recruited a 
number of support workers. Two apprentices have been recruited and an 
increasing number of volunteers.  All new recruits are on Hft terms and 
conditions.  

All new support staff recruited to HFT Flintshire have been recruited under 
terms and conditions agreed with Flintshire County Council as specified in 
the service contract. This is at the hourly rate of £9 per hour and a holiday 
entitlement of twenty three days. This provides the required consideration 
to the principles of the two-tier workforce code.

Tudalen 16



3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 The Social Services project team undertook a fully inclusive and co-
productive procurement process.  This process and throughout the 
planning and service transition stages the project team engaged and 
consulted with people supported in the service, with families and carers, 
advocacy services, 3rd sector organisations, elected members and trade 
union colleagues.

Hft maintain regular communications with all stakeholders through written 
and face-to-face communications. This include a close working 
relationship with the three representative trade unions.

Hft place a great importance on the engagement of people supported and 
their families and carers in a co-productive way. This include focus groups, 
such as Voices To Be Heard, feedback surveys and social events. Each 
service site have representatives in these groups, and this is seen as very 
important and helps to boost confidence and social interaction. The staff 
team worked closely with people supported in the cafes to design and 
purchase new uniforms.  This was helped by fundraising activities.  The 
new uniforms are very popular and have created a positive identity.  Tri 
Ffordd are considering a similar uniform change.

The Council continue to hold bi-monthly LD Planning Partnership meetings 
with representation from people supported in services, advocacy services, 
parents and voluntary groups, in addition to Health and Social Services.  
Hft provide a key input to this group, working collaboratively on initiatives 
to improve services and community activities for people.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 Operational risks are managed by the operational and finance sub-groups, 
escalating to the Partnership Board for support and mitigation as required.
The Partnership Board manage all service risks, including any conditions 
agreed as part of the service contract agreement. 

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 None.

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Organisational Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee ADM Report 
Part 2 Restricted, 29th January 2018 (Adult Social Care: Day Care and 
Work Opportunities)

Organisational Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee ADM Report 
28th July 2016 (Adult Social Care: Day Care and Work Opportunities)

Tudalen 17



Organisational Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee ADM Report 
22nd February 2016 (Adult Social Care: Day Care and Work Opportunities)

Organisational Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee ADM Report 2nd 
November 2015 (Adult Social Care: Day Care and Work Opportunities)

Contact Officer: Dawn Holt
Telephone: 01352 702128
E-mail: dawn.holt@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Alternative Delivery Model – A different way of providing the service 
ranging from shared service through to a social organisation through to 
external procurement.

Transfer of Undertakings Protection of Employment Regulations 
(TUPE) – Employees transfer automatically to the new organisation with their 
terms and conditions of employment and continuity of service preserved.

Learning Disability – A significant impairment of intelligence or social 
functioning acquired before adulthood. Educational services in the UK use 
the term ‘Learning Difficulty’ and those children with moderate or severe 
learning difficulty may be regarded as having a learning disability.

Day Care – Daytime care for people who cannot be fully independent. 
Provided within centres to which service users travel or are transported. 
Service providers can vary from statutory agencies such as health or social 
services to the independent and voluntary sector. Day care may cater for 
users with high dependency needs in conjunction with home care and 
residential provision, and be integral to an intermediate care programme. 
Alternatively, day care, particularly within the voluntary sector, may offer 
social stimulation and be part of a preventative programme aimed at 
combating a move towards functional dependence and offering carer relief 
on a structured basis.

Progression Model – This is a conceptual model that represents different 
levels of independence/dependence. It can be used to show the service 
response to an individual’s needs at a given level of need. The main use of 
the model is to help plan how a person can acquire, or maintain, independent 
living skills. Care and support planning should help people achieve the 
maximum level of independence to which they aspire. It is important to match 
the service response to current need but also to work to reduce them over 
time, helping individuals gain confidence and skills, and so reduce long term 
needs.

Hft Fusion Model – The Fusion Model is based on the concept of Person-
Centred Active Support (PCAS). This is a way of supporting people so that 
they are engaged in meaningful activity and relationships as active 
participants. And as a result, they exercise more control over their lives and 
experience greater levels of inclusion, independence and choice.

Tudalen 18

mailto:dawn.holt@flintshire.gov.uk


Project SEARCH – a project that provides on-site work placements for 
young people with a learning difficulty that would help them gain the skills 
needed for employment. The aim is to achieve paid employment for people 
going through the project.

Tudalen 19



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Monday, 28th January 2019

Report Subject Forward Work Programme

Cabinet Member Not applicable

Report Author Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the 
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members.  By 
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to 
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues.  A copy of the Forward Work 
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been 
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward 
Work Programme for the Organisational Change Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and 
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of 
the Committee be authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme 
between meetings, as the need arises. 

Tudalen 21

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 5



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number 
of sources.  Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can 
be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council 
or Chief Officers.  Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet 
Work Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of 
significance’ to be applied.  This can be achieved by asking a range of 
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. Is it an area of major change or risk?
3. Are there issues of concern in performance?
4. Is there new Government guidance of legislation?
5. Is it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None as a result of this report.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 – Draft Forward Work Programme

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None.

Contact Officer: Ceri Shotton - Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator
Telephone: 01352 702305
E-mail: ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 22

mailto:ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk


7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of 
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Tudalen 23



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Organisational Change Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Forward Work Programme 2018/19

Items to be scheduled

 Flintshire County Council’s Property Asset Rationalisation Programme
 Connah’s Quay Swimming Pool – Cambrian Aquatics Mid-Year Progress Report 2018/19
 Update on Digital Strategy – as agreed at the 17th December meeting

DATE SUBJECT O&S FOCUS REPORT FROM

Monday 18th 
March 2019
10.00 am

Quarter 3 Council Plan 2018/19 Monitoring 
Report

Aura Leisure and Libraries Progress Review

Social Value Strategy

Forward Work Programme

Monitoring and Assurance

Monitoring and Assurance

Consultation

Consultation

Ceri Shotton

Colin Everett

Niall Waller

Margaret Parry-Jones

Monday 13th May 
2019
10.00 am

Holywell Leisure Centre Community Asset 
Transfer

NEWydd Catering and Cleaning Progress Review

Forward Work Programme

Monitoring and Assurance

Consultation

Consultation

Neal Cockerton

Steve Jones

Ceri Shotton

Monday 1st July 
2019
10.00 am

Quarter 4/Year-end Council Plan 2018/19 
Monitoring Report

Forward Work Programme

Monitoring and Assurance

Consultation

Ceri Shotton

Margaret Parry-Jones

T
udalen 25



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn bw
rpasol


	Rhaglen
	3 Cofnodion
	4 Diweddariad ar y Model Darpariaeth Amgen - Diwrnod Anableddau Dysgu Gofal Cymdeithasol a’r Gwasanaeth Cyfleoedd Gwaith
	5 Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol
	Appendix 1 - Draft Forward Work Programme


